
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

October 11, 2019 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1  
 

Request For Proposal: RFP #2020-07-VIT PORT COMMUNITY PLANNING TOOL 
Closing Date: October 31, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m. 

 
NOTE: THE DEADLINE FOR PROPOSALS HAS BEEN EXTENDED TO 
OCTOBER 31, 2019 @ 2PM LOCAL PREVAILING TIME.  
 
The following questions and answers are provided to all offerors: 
No. Questions Answers 

1 

I hereby kindly request for a copy of the HRCP II 
procurement guidelines. 

A copy of the Procurement and Capital Outlay 
Manual can be located on our website under 
Manuals: 
http://www.portofvirginia.com/about/policies/procu
rement/ 

2 Could we get your RFP 2020-07-2019 in Word 
file format? 

We are unable to provide the RFP documents in 
Word format.  

3 
What are the metrics for success for this project? Increase in vessel on time percentage 

Decrease in timelines for information sharing 

4 
Are there specific targets for efficiency, 
throughput, or utilization? 

Berth occupancy rates 
Ship wait time 
Ship fuel usage 
Vessel order changes  

5 
What are the biggest pain points you hope to 
remove? 

Delays in updating information causing 
inconsistencies in the stakeholder community 
 
Incorrect information shared 

6 
Can you provide a high-level solution architecture 
for overall port operations?  

Port Operations are based on Navis N4.  Have 3 
stand-alone instances of N4 for our different 
terminals 

7 
From scheduling vessels to container logistics and 
shipping, what systems are in place or are 
planned? 

Port Operations are based on Navis N4 
Vessel scheduling is a combination of Navis N4, 
homegrown system, and MS Excel 

8 
Who are the various stakeholders / partners that 
will be involved in defining requirements and 
implementing the solution? What roles will they 
play? 

Port of Virginia is defining requirements and 
implementing the solution.  Port of Virginia 
Entities, Virginia Port Authority and Virginia 
International Terminals will be executing. 

9 What challenges to anticipate in rolling out a new 
Port Community Planning Tool? 

External stakeholder acceptance 
Interfacing with Navis N4 



 

10 Is there friction anticipated in driving adoption 
with stakeholders or partners? 

Yes 

11 

Beyond vessel, berth, and crane management, are 
there other logistical or procedural gaps that an 
ideal solution will help fill? 
 

Coordinating the timing of movements of vessels 
between terminals.  
Planning for the container yard based on vessel 
timings. 
Planning for maintenance timing 

12 Is there any need in container tracking / tracing? 
 

We already have systems in place 

13 
Are there specific requirements around hosting 
(cloud-based vs. on premise)? 
 

Willing to entertain different options 

14 
Is there a specific data security standard or 
certification that the system needs to comply 
with? 
 

NIST Standards 

15 
Is there an existing pro forma for scheduling? If 
not, can you provide an overview of what rules a 
pro forma would include? 
 

Currently there is excel based, but mainly manually 
implemented. 

16 
Beyond this project, what are the metrics for 
success for the port as a whole? What does the 
highest order of success look like? 
 

Economic development and creation of jobs in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia 
Increase in total container throughput 
Increase in East Coast Market share 

17 

The General Information table on pg. 2 of the 
RFP states the Contractor shall “be prepared to 
mobilize no later than December 1st, 2019” and 
that work will be “completed within 7 days of 
Notice to Proceed.”  Can VIT expound on the 
requirements for those 7 days?  Is work expected 
to start on December 1st or December 15, as 
stated in Section 10. A. of the Terms and 
Conditions? 
 

Willing to entertain and will score what is 
proposed 

18 Who makes go/no go decision on this 
project? Port authority, board of directors, both? 

We will be following the Port Authority’s 
Procurement Manual 
http://www.portofvirginia.com/about/policies/procu
rement/ 
There is a cross functional team who will be 
evaluating responses and deciding.  Final signature 
execution is within the Port Authority 

19 What type of cargo vessels does VIT expect to 
track in the Berth planning and scheduling tool? Is 
it just containers or should it include RORO, 
bulk, break bulk, liquids?  
 

Primarily Container, but there are also RORO and 
break bulk vessels that call.  Initially we are focused 
on only vessels that call Port of Virginia facilities, 
but the ability to expand is a positive. 

20 If you are planning on tracking more than one 
vessel type, do you have a rough percentage 

It varies, but mostly container ships.   



 

estimate on how many vessels per type per 
month? (i.e.70% containers, 20 bulk/break bulk, 
5% liquid and 5% cruises)  
 

95% container, 3% mixed cellular/RORO, 2.5% 
RORO, .5% break bulk. 

21 What is the level of involvement the port 
authority plans on having in the data acquisition 
efforts across the stakeholder groups and users? 
 

Currently data is entered manually, via shipline 
published schedules, and emails with the shiplines.   
Proposers should explain their solution, and the 
cost of any data or feed that is not provided in 
their proposal, or the means of obtaining it. 

22 What is the expectation on where to get Vessel 
Schedules Data or Shipping Lines? 
 

Both.  Currently it is mostly manual 

23 Is the port authority going to help PCS providers 
receive required data?  
 

Proposers should explain their solution, and the 
cost of any data or feed that is not provided in 
their proposal, or the means of obtaining it. 

24 What specific mechanism will be employed to 
assist a PCS provider in receiving required data? 
Would this be an incentivization program?  
Would this be mandated data sharing?  What 
level of timeliness will VIT require for parties that 
provide data? 
 

Proposers should explain their solution, and the 
cost of any data or feed that is not provided in 
their proposal, or the means of obtaining it. 
 

25 Will VIT grant access to the selected vendor to 
gather data on the port’s behalf from all relevant 
data providers, existing and future, to ensure that 
the necessary data elements are available? 
 

Proposers should explain their solution, and the 
cost of any data or feed that is not provided in 
their proposal, or the means of obtaining it. 

26 Which teams from the port will be overseeing 
solution build/design? 
 

Information Technology, Vessel Operations, 
Innovation 

27 How will the port help the vendor obtain access 
to the stakeholders necessary for solution design 
and verification?  
 

Design and Verification will be done with internal 
stakeholders only. 

28 Will the PCS be required to have a consistent 
look and feel with other VIT apps and website?  If 
so, what are these other VIT apps?  

Not necessary. 
Currently used are Navis N4 and MS Excel. 
ProPass Website 

29 Are there any guiding design principles laid down 
by VIT around the look and feel of their existing 
apps? 

No 

30 Do we have flexibility to repurpose the look and 
feel if needed for an improved user experience?  

Yes 

31 It is understood that all relevant legal 
requirements and statutes are to be met and/or 
exceeded for data security/ privacy but are there 
any specific compliance or security 
certifications/audits that VIT will require? 

External auditors use NIST standards 



 

32 Where will vendor obtain channel closure 
information (reference to 1.C.) 

The rules will be provided to the winning 
proposer. 

33 How will user roles/permissions be assigned? Can 
VIT expound on the desired user sign-up process 
and the role/permission assignment process 
(reference to 3.C.)Is it correctly understood that 
users with proper permissions would manually 
edit the pro forma or is this calculated by 
application (historical, Machine Learning/Artificial 
Intelligence)?  Is this by terminal or berth or crane 
or shipping line? (reference to 2.D.1) 

Manual edits are currently done by the terminal 
staff. 

34 What is intra-Port of Virginia movements 
(reference to 4.C.) 

Movement from one VIT terminal to another 

35 Who does the Vessel Operations Staff work for? 
(reference to 2.C.2) 

Virginia International Terminals 

36 Who are considered users? (reference to 3.A.) Anyone who can see, change, or manage the 
information or system. 

37 Page 2 of the RFP lists “Items To Be Returned” in 
the bidders response and lists the 10 Exhibits.  
For Exhibits that do no require additional 
information or do not need to be filled, are there 
any other actions the bidder must take to 
complete these, or must they just be returned as 
an additional Exhibit to the response/proposal? 

If they do not require additional information or 
need to be filled out, please return with N/A.  

38 Contract Term: We would appreciate your 
guidance on how to interpret these statements.  

We apologize for the typographical error, section 
should read: Work to begin December 1, 2019, go 
live by February 1, 2020 and fully implemented by 
June 1, 2020. 

39 Most important for us is: when would you like to 
start work and when would you like to have 
completed the implementation? 

Work to begin December 1, 2019, go live 
February 1, 2020, and fully implemented by June 1, 
2020. 

40 Please list and specify the Port’s current 
Applications. 

Navis N4, Excel, and home grown software 

41 Please give us your minimum technical 
requirements. 

Must meet current IT security standards 

42 Could you specify the number of connections to 
other systems, and the (estimated, min-max) 
number of end-users for us? 

3 instances of Navis N4 
Roughly 50 total internal users, but unlikely more 
than 10 concurrent, ~6 machine interfaces 

43 What are the preferred terms of contract and 
payment frequencies (monthly, yearly, one-off) for 
the table provided on page 3? 

If the proposed solution is subscription based, 
monthly would be preferable.  If it is local install, 
one-off plus maintenance.  But different solutions 
are acceptable depending on the proposed 
architecture. 

44 Please confirm to us that you are (in principal) 
okay with our offering a Cloud-based (SaaS) 
solution to you and that the type of 
subcontracting described by us here is allowed 
and understood to be part of a SaaS offering. 

Yes, SaaS is acceptable 



 

45 Are the VIT and HRCP II Procurement and 
Surplus Property Guidelines the same document? 
If not, we would like to receive copies of any 
additional rules/guidelines. 

Those can be found on our website: 
http://www.portofvirginia.com/about/policies/procu
rement/ under Manuals  

46 Please confirm that providing sufficient 
information under Section C of Exhibit will give 
us the chance to meet the criteria for the 
principles of SWaM in this RFP? 

As long as you list and follow through the SWaM 
subcontractor vendors you plan on utilizing for 
this project, you shouldn’t have any problems 
meeting those requirements.  

47 What is meant with globally? Visible in all systems 

48 If possible, could you alert us by e- mail once you 
post the answers to questions in this RFP? Or 
when there are important updates? 

Posted to EVA 

49 Can the software be offered as SaaS and does the 
customer want to operate the software himself?  

Yes, SaaS is acceptable 

50 If SaaS is possible, is it allowed to operate outside 
the US? 

Yes 

51 Can the solution consist of two systems that are 
connected – one for berth planning, one for 
vessel scheduling? 

Yes 

52 Who will be the users of the system (both, 
internal users from your organization and 
external users from the port community)? 

Primarily internal users 

53 Interface to N4: We assume that the system will 
provide the requested information via an interface 
within the scope of this RFP but that the 
integration into N4 will be covered in a separate 
integration task which is not part of this scope. 

Within the scope of the RFP, data will be 
extracted from N4 and N4 will be updated with 
provided APIs. 

54 Ad 1.B.: Is the purpose to measure deviations 
from originally planned schedules? 

Tracking changes what vessels are “on Time” 
versus “Off schedule”.  Changes to schedule cause 
issues for terminals and shippers. 

55 Ad 2.A: Can we assume that AIS data for the 
requested geographical area will already be 
available as raw data streaming via an interface or 
do we need to cover the provision of AIS data 
within the scope of this project? 

We do not currently have a source of AIS data 

56 Ad 2.C: Which are the key operational business 
processes to be covered by the berth planning 
system? Is the intention to manually allocate 
planned vessels to berths based on planning data 
from the vessel scheduling system and operational 
data from N4? 

The goal is to move from manual to automatic.  
Changes in the PCS tool will push and pull from 
N4 

57 Ad 2.C.2.: Do you consider vessel operations staff 
at the terminal or also service providers like tugs 
and pilots? 

At this stage, staff at the terminals only 

58 Ad 2.C.7: What will be the source of this 
information? Does N4 provide real-time crane 
positioning data? 

N4 has crane assignments, and stow plans, with 
current container loads and discharges 



 

59 Ad 3.D.: Could you please specify which kind of 
data shall be exchanged through API? 

Vessel Visits and changes to Vessel Visits 

60 Ad 4.A: Which information shall be covered by 
the vessel list?  

Vessel Visits 

61 Ad 4.B.: Are there any other internal systems 
apart from N4 to be considered? If yes, please list 
these. 

No 

62 Ad 4.C.: Could you please give more details on 
the business processes to be covered in this 
requirement? 

Vessel calls at multiple Port of Virginia terminals. 
Data must be coordinated between all N4 
instances. Currently a manual process. 

63 Exhibit B #3: What is the definition of delivery 
time? Is it the go-live date, i.e., the date where the 
new system is used 100% to plan operations? 

Since proposals are expected to be out of the box 
solutions, SaaS solutions, and developed solutions, 
please propose your timeline, and it will be 
considered in the evaluation. 

64 
Exhibit B #13: Negotiating with the lowest bidder: 
Does this mean that the lowest bidder will always 
be the first party that VIT will negotiate with? 

This is a best value evaluation.  That language was 
left in from the boilerplate.  We will negotiate with 
the scored best value proposer.   

65 Exhibit B #15: Performance & payment bonds: Is 
the performance bond applicable for this RFP? 

Will discuss with successful offeror.  

66 Exhibit C #1 Master Schedule for the Port of VA: 
A: Which terminals are specifically included in the 
scope? Only container (VIG, NIT, PMT)? Or also 
including RMT and NNMT? 

VIG,NIT, and PMT are the only required.  Ability 
to include NNMT and other Hampton Road area 
terminals will be considered a positive. 

67 Exhibit C #1 Master Schedule for the Port of VA: 
A: Are non-containerized vessels also included in 
the scope? 

Yes 

68 
Master Vessel Schedule Maintenance and 
Processes: How many instances of N4 need to be 
integrated to? Which facilities run Navis N4? 

 

3 instances.  All facilities now run N4. 

69 
Master Vessel Schedule Interface with Internal 
Systems: Does coordination of intra-port 
movements also include movements of service 
providers, e.g., bunker, pilots, tugs? 

Initial phase of this, and initial scoring, is based on 
VIT terminals.  Ability to expand for pilots, tugs, 
etc. would be positively viewed.  Currently no 
bunkerers operate on vessels at VIT Ter. 

70 Exhibit D: As a company registered in Europe, 
without an SCC vendor identification number, do 
we need to get one? Or can we file under option 
(C)? 

Please review the instructions and fill out Exhibit D 
completely and thoroughly. Further information 
can be found at the SCC website under the FAQ 
link 
(http://www.scc.virginia.gov/clk/befaq/forinva.aspx)  

71 Exhibit H: If the contractor is a small business, and 
does not use any subcontractors, and is not 
certified, can we file under section B? 

If you are not SBSD certified and do not use any 
subcontractors, you are not able to comply with 
this section other than N/A. 



 

72 We are studying the RFP and in order to build a 
financial proposal we need to know how many 
vessels have to be scheduled, if it is a regular offer 
of if it changes depending on the day/week/month, 
and how many schedulers will participate to this 
new organization.  

100-150 vessels per month. 
Primarily team of 8 making change 

 
 
Note: A signed acknowledgement of this addendum must be received via email to 
proposals@vit.org either prior to the proposal due date and hour or attached to your proposal. 
Signature on this addendum does not substitute for your signature on the original proposal 
document. The original proposal document must be signed.  

Sincerely,  

     
Erin Kyer 
Materials Requirement Planner 

__________    
 
          Name of Firm  
 
 
_______    
         Signature/Title  

________________________    
                 Date  
 


